
CITY OF ELKO 
CITY MANAGER 

1751 COLLEGE AVENUE 
ELKO, NEV ADA 89801 

(775) 777-7110/FAX (775) 777-7119 

The Elko City Council will meet in regular session on Tuesday, October 9, 2018 

Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801, at 4:00 P.M., P.D.T. 

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Council. 

In accordance with NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda was posted on the City of Elko 

Website, http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada's Public Notice Website, 

https://notice.nv.gov, and in the following locations: 

ELKO CITY HALL 
1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 

Date: Time Posted: October 3, 2018 at 3:05 p.m. 

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE 
571 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801 

Date/Time Posted: October 3, 2018 at 3:15 p.m. 

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
1448 Silver, Elko NV 89801 

Date/Time Posted: October 3, 2018 at 3:25 p.m. 

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY 
720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801 

Date/Time Posted: October 3 2018 at 3:35 . 

Posted by: Shelle Petersen 
Name 

Technical Assistant 
Title 

The public may contact Kim Wilkinson by phone at (775)777-7110 or email at 
kwilkinson@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The 
agenda and supporting material is available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV or 
on the City website at http://www.elkocitynv.gov/ 

Dated this 3rd day of October, 2018 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Members of the public who are disabled and require speci accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify the Elko City Council, 17 College enue, Elko, Nevada 89801, 
or by calling (77 5) 777-7110. 

Curtis Calder, City Manager 



CITY OF ELKO 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
4:00 P.M., P.D.T., TUESDAY, OCTOBER 9, 2018 

ELKO CITY HALL, 1751 COLLEGE A VENUE, ELKO, NEV ADA 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko City Council has been properly posted 
for this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements. 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item 
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda 
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: September 25, 2018 Regular Session 

I. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Reading of a proclamation by the Mayor in Recognition of the month of October 
2018 as National Breast Cancer Awareness Month and October 19, 2018 as 
National Mammography Day, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION 
ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM 

B. Presentation of a "Years of Service Plaque" to Human Resources Manager, Aubree 
Barnum, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION 
ITEM 

C. Fire Department Quarterly Presentation by Fire Chief Matt Griego, and matters 
related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY-NON ACTION ITEM 

II. APPROPRIATIONS 

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

B. Review and possible approval of Print 'N Copy Warrants, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

10/09/2018 City Council Agenda 1 



C. Review and possible approval of Great Basin Engineering Contractors Warrants, 
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

D. Review, consideration, and possible authorization to solicit bids for a new service 
truck with body and crane, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The Water Reclamation Facility is in need of a new service truck. This item has 
been budgeted for in the current fiscal year. The old service truck is 21 years old 
and is undersized for the job requirements. The new unit will be a crew cab 4 x 4, 
19,500 GVW Chassis, dual wheel, with 14' body and 7,500 lb. crane with a 
minimum reach of 30'. RL 

E. Review, consideration, and possible final acceptance of the Cedar Street 
Reconstruction Project Phase 2, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

This Project was awarded to Great Basin Engineering in the amount of 
$1,660,686.79, on February 2, 2018. There were adjustments in the quantities 
installed in the amount of $43,174.03 for a total of $1,703,860.82. Great Basin 
Engineering has satisfactorily completed the project in conformance with the plans 
and specification. DS 

III. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to reserve 
City-owned property located at and adjacent to 1401 Ruby Vista Drive for the 
purpose of a future Fire Station, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

The City of Elko Fire Department is requesting that three (3) parcels ofland located 
at and adjacent to 1401 Ruby Vista Dr. be reserved for a future Fire Station. JS 

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to apply for 
an Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) through the Department of Homeland 
Security to replace an Aerial Fire Truck Apparatus, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

10/09/2018 

The City of Elko Fire Department Fire Department would like to apply for the 2018 
FEMA Regional Assistance to Firefighters Grant. The application would apply for 
a new Aerial Ladder truck. The current Ladder 2 is 30 years old which is the 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) recommended maximum age for 
Aerial Apparatus to be in front line use. This apparatus will increase firefighter 
safety and health, emergency response and scene capabilities, provide greater 
storage and personnel carrying capacity and reduce rising maintenance cost. The 
AFG Program has listed this item as high priority for grant funding this year. Total 
amount of the grant would be around 957,242.00 with a 10% match by the City. JS 

City Council Agenda 2 



C. Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to apply for 
an Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) through the Department of Homeland 
Security for Portable and Mobile radio communication devices, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The City of Elko Fire Department would like to apply for the 2018 FEMA 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant. The application would apply for 16 mobile radios 
and accessories and 50 portable radios and accessories utilizing Government 
pricing. These radios will enhance firefighter safety, emergency communications 
and interoperability with Elko PD, Elko Ambulance and our mutual aid partners. 
The AFG Program has listed this item as high priority for grant funding this year. 
Total amount of the grant would be around 353,207.53 with a 10% match by the 
City. JS 

D. Consideration and possible approval of a temporary waiver of the mandatory 
connection to public sewer associated with building permit 18-336 for APN 001-
633-030, pursuant to City Code 3-2-3 (B)(4), and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

Great Basin Estates Phase 2 and Phase 3 Maps are currently pending NDEP 
approval. In an effort to accommodate the developer's schedule, City Staff issued 
one (1) Building Permit for Lot 43 (Phase 2) on APN 001-633-030. Since NDEP 
has not yet approved the maps, "public sewerage and water supply" are technically 
unavailable, thereby requiring City Council approval of a waiver of the mandatory 
connection to public sewer requirement. The temporary waiver, if approved, will 
expire in 90 days. CC 

IV. REPORTS 

A. Mayor and City Council 
B. City Manager- Subdivision Working Group; OHV Working Group 
C. Assistant City Manager 
D. Utilities Director 
E. Public Works 
F. Airport Manager 
G. City Attorney 
H. Fire Chief 
I. Police Chief 
J. City Clerk 
K. City Planner 
L. Development Manager 
M. Administrative Services Director 
N. Parks and Recreation Director 
0. Civil Engineer 
P. Building Official 

10/09/2018 City Council Agenda 3 



COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item 
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda 
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

NOTE: The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, or other Presiding Officer of the City Council 
reserves the right to change the order of the agenda, and if the agenda has not been 
completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another specified date and time. 
Additionally, the City Council reserves the right to combine two or more agenda 
items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion relating to an 
item on the agenda at any time. 

ADJOURNMENT 

10/09/2018 City Council Agenda 

Curtis Calder 
City Manager 

4 



---------- ---------

City of Elko 
County of Elko 
State of Nevada 

) 
) 
) ss September 25, 2018 

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of Nevada met for a regular meeting 
beginning at 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, September 25, 2018. 

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Chris Johnson. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor Present: 

Council Present: 

Chris J. Johnson 

Councilman John Rice 
Councilwoman Mandy Simons 
Councilman Robert Schmidtlein arrived 5:28 p.m. 
Councilman Reece Keener 

City Staff Present: Curtis Calder, City Manager 
Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager 
Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director 
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk 
Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director 
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
Matt Griego, Fire Chief 
Jack Snyder, Deputy Fire Chief 
John Holmes, Fire Marshal 
Ben Reed Jr., Police Chief 
James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director 
Candi Quilici, Accounting Manager 
Jim Foster, Airport Manager 
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer 
Jeff Ford, Building Official 
Dave Stanton, City Attorney 
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this 
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive 
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

There were no public comments. 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 1 of 14 



APPROVAL OF MINUTES: August 28, 2018 
September 11, 2018 

Regular Session 
Regular Session 

The minutes were approved by general consent. 

I. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Reading of a proclamation by the Mayor in recognition of Fire Prevention Week 
2018, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION 
ITEM 

Mayor Johnson read the proclamation and presented a copy of it to John Holmes, Fire Marshal. 

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, stated the Fire Prevention Picnic is this Saturday from 12:00 to 3:00 
p.m. at the Main City Park. 

II. APPROPRIATIONS 

B. Review, consideration, and possible final acceptance of the Public Works 
Department Preventive Maintenance Project 2018 to apply Micro Slurry Seal to 
select City streets, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

At their June 12, 2018 meeting, the Council awarded the Bid for the Preventive 
Maintenance Project 2018 to Sierra Nevada Construction in the amount of 
$527,507.00 plus additive alternate 1 in the amount of $4,500.00, for a total of 
$532,007.00. Micro Slurry Seal was also placed on Airport and Landfill facilities. 
Sierra Nevada Construction has satisfactorily completed the work. DS 

Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director, explained it was a good project for the City and it 
looks great. He recommended approval. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to 
approve and accept the Public Works Department's Preventative Maintenance Project 
2018. 

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0) 

III. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review, discussion and possible action to direct Staff to develop alternative dark 
fiber pricing models, including authorization to obtain feedback from broadband 
providers regarding the viability of such models, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

09/25/2018 

City Staff has been in communication with the Governor's Office of Science, 
Innovation and Technology concerning the possibility of leasing or licensing to 
various companies, such as Syringa Networks, the use of dark fiber owned by the 
City. The City has different options at this point, to include setting pricing for the 

City Council Minutes Page 2 of14 



use of dark fiber. The City also has the option of leasing dark fiber through an 
agreement that gives the lessee exclusive use of specific strands of fiber for a 
term, typically 20 years, versus the option of licensing the use of strands of fiber 
under certain terms and conditions. A lease would guarantee exclusive use during 
the term while a license would not. Typically, dark fiber is leased through an 
"indefeasible right to use" contract. However, since those contracts are actually 
leases in most cases, the requirements of NRS 268.059, et seq. would apply and 
the City would likely have to go through a public auction process before entering 
into the contract. City Staff needs direction from the Council in terms of how to 
proceed. CC 

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, explained this a new legal situation for the City. There wasn't a lot 
of authority that he could find on this specific issue. What happens is if the City leases out real 
property we are subject to NRS 268.059, the public auction process. We have gone through that 
quite a few times. When we give a license for someone to use city property that confers a lesser 
interest in property that does not trigger that statute. What we have here is a situation where we 
have a real property interest involved because this fiber involves actually taking a cable, burying 
it underground, and it is not easily removed from the real estate without doing something to the 
real estate like digging it all up to replace it. It becomes, at minimum, what is known as a 
fixture. A fixture is something that is affixed to the real property in such a way you can't easily 
remove it. In his opinion we have real property. The next question is, what do we do ifwe give 
somebody the right to use some cable that is buried underground? The typical way to do it is an 
Indefeasible Right to Use Agreement. They are kind of like a lease. They are a long 
complicated document but they are basically a lease. It gives the leasee the exclusive right to use 
this fiber in this cable for 20 years, and nobody else gets to use it. It is not just leasing out 
bandwidth, it is actually leasing out physical strands of fiber. You will be leasing out a part of 
the real estate. In his opinion, an Indefeasible Right to Use Agreement that is constructed that 
way, would trigger the lease statute and a public auction process. An alternative would be the 
possibly of entering into a license agreement with a company. He explained the difference 
between a lease and a license agreement. There is a lot of physical investment that goes into a 
project as this. Whoever uses this would have to come in with a facility in order to use it. He's 
not sure how Council will want to approach that. We thought we needed Council to give us 
direction as to which direction to go. He's conservative with things like this. 

Councilman Keener asked, if they did a license agreement, that would only involve one party, 
correct? 

Mr. Stanton answered you could enter into a license agreement with a single party but the 
problem is the exclusivity of it. If we write into the license agreement that they have exclusive 
use of strands of fiber for a period of time, you can call it a license if you want but it's not. It's a 
lease. 

Councilman Keener said there are twelve bundles, twelve strands each. Could we do a license 
agreement to different bundles of fiber to various different parties? 

Mr. Stanton answered yes. It cannot be exclusive because these strands are real property once 
they are buried. It will be a lease no matter what it is. He would feel more comfortable going 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 3 of14 



the public auction route unless an economic development exemption applies. That is a decision 
he cannot make. 

Councilman Rice asked how widely is this distributed throughout the community. 

Troy Poncin, IT Manager, explained the fiber goes down Mountain City Highway from the 
airport, to Idaho Street and then all the way to City Hall. It also turns a little bit to go to the 
Police Department. 

Councilman Rice asked if a third party used some of that fiber would they be able to channel 
different directions or would they only be able to serve people along that corridor? 

Mr. Ponsin said they would only use our piece and maybe dig a bit to get to their goal. We 
would be a transport provider. 

Councilman Rice thought he felt more comfortable going the public auction way. There are 
other vendors out there that might be interested. Obviously Syringa has shown some interest and 
that is great. Is there any expectation of level of service to anticipate? 

Mr. Poncin answered we should anticipate that. We should anticipate that we should have the 
service up. If there was a fiber cut, that would be our responsibility. We would be responsible 
for locating these fibers to make sure they don't get cut. 

Councilman Keener said we made that investment. In talking to consultants, it was said for a 
city this size, this is the most underserved community in terms of internet. He was in favor of 
making our facilities available for providers. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, to direct 
staff to work with legal counsel and prepare documents so that we can move forward with 
a lease of the City property, under the Indefeasible Right to Use provision, and matters 
related thereto. 

After the motion and before the second, Mr. Stanton asked if there was any interest in pursuing 
an economic development exemption. Are we talking about developing minimum pricing for the 
public auction process? 

Councilman Keener thought they should have all options on the table. He felt it would be 
valuable to include that language. 

Councilman Rice read the recommended language, "to gather additional information about the 
viability of different pricing schedules, forms, leases and licenses." Was that the language 
Councilman Keener wanted in there? 

Mr. Stanton asked if they were still talking about licenses or leases? 

Councilman Rice answered leases. He was looking at the recommended language in the agenda. 
They are looking for the most comprehensive look at this opportunity. 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 4 of14 



Councilman Keener said his motion was with the intent to not pursue the licensing but rather the 
lease of real property. 

Councilman Rice seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. (4-0) 

IV. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

A. Review, discussion, and possible adoption of Resolution No. 26-18, a Resolution 
Opposing Ballot Question 3, The Energy Choice Initiative, for the 2018 General 
Election, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

A copy of the proposed Resolution has been enclosed in the agenda packet for 
review. CC 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, explained it was the pleasure of council. They have heard both 
arguments regarding Question 3. If Council would like to oppose it, they are welcome to do so 
through this Resolution. 

Mr. Stanton reminded Council we cannot spend any money supporting or opposing a ballot 
measure. 

Councilman Keener said he fully supports this Resolution. Nevada Mining Association is 
opposing Question 3 too. It could probably help the large corporations but there will be 
devastating impacts on rural Nevada. 

Councilman Rice said he has the same position. He has watched how de-regulation takes a toll 
on rural communities. He is concerned that this initiative would result in rural Nevadans being 
underserved. 

Mayor Johnson confessed he voted yes on the original ballot. But then he heard from Wells 
Rural Electric and he changed his mind. He has had meetings with both sides. You will always 
have one utility that will provide and have control. He has spent time listening to both sides but 
looking at some of the reasons it should be a no, he is in support of this resolution. 

Councilman Keener said he is a free market person but when you talk about the stranded costs, 
someone has to pay for that. We will be dependent on the Nevada Legislators to address this. 
That doesn't seem like the right way to address deregulation. Electricity, because of the capital 
costs, is one of the very few industries that sets up a monopoly that is regulated. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, to 
approve Resolution No. 26-18. 

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0) 

VI. REPORTS 

A. Mayor and City Council 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 5 of14 



Councilman Keener said there is a blood drive this Friday at GBC. There 
was an ECVA meeting this morning and they reviewed the room tax receipts. 
They came in strong. The board wanted him to express appreciation to the 
Clerk's office and everyone else in updating the reporting requirements. He 
attended a board breakfast with the Chamber on Friday. He thanked John 
Holmes for being there and doing such a terrific job. 

B. City Manager 
Curtis Calder said they had Nevada League of Cities (NLC) last week. 

Jonnye, Kelly and himself went down and then Scott went down to discuss the 
homeless camp. It wasn't as attended as well as it would have been if it had 
been held down south. We were approached to hold the 2020 conference. 
That could cost us $15,000 as a hostingfee. Councilman Keener asked Curtis 
to reach out to Winnemucca about their host fee. Maybe we can get some 
assistance from hotels. Jonnye Jund said Winnemucca did pay the $15,000 
fee. Curtis just wanted to run that by everyone. Some of the smaller 
communities that used to host this do not host anymore. Regarding the OHV 
ordinance that was initiated, he is working to schedule the first workshop for 
it. He anticipates the meeting in the next two weeks. 

C. Assistant City Manager 
Scott Wilkinson did a presentation on the humanitarian camp at NLC. He 

felt there were several people in the audience that looked like they may be 
considering something similar to this in their community. Councilman Keener 
asked about the census out at the camp and Scott answered there are about 
25-30 people camping there. 

D. Utilities Director 
Ryan Limberg reported on the River and Railroad Track crossing project. 

That project is essentially complete and they are addressing the punch list. 
Ruby Dome is working on a manhole because it has shown some leaking. The 
other item relates to the Sports Complex. To use reuse water, there are two 
steps. The effluent plan was submitted to NDEP and approved last week. The 
next step is we need a permit to use the water there. That application has 
been turned in for about a month now. He will be pushing that along to the 
approval stage. 

E. Public Works 
Dennis Strickland said he should have Cedar Street on the agenda for 

final acceptance at next meeting. He has heard nothing but positives about 
the work done on Phase 2. The Centennial Park should also be on the net 
agenda for substantial completion. The culvert rehab work will start Monday, 
next week. Striping should wrap up this week. It has been a busy season. 

F. Airport Manager 
Jim Foster said the fencing project is 1 /3 into the days but not 1 /3 into the 

project. There is a phone line that goes through the area that has slowed the 
process. They expected this to be slower. Once they get into phase 2, he 
expects them to make up some time. He felt they were doing fine and was not 
worried yet. The vault work has begun. 

G. City Attorney 
H. Fire Chief 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 6 of14 



John Holmes repeated the Fire Prevention Picnic is Saturday at the Main 
City Park. 

I. Police Chief 
J. City Clerk 
K. City Planner 
L. Development Manager 
M. Administrative Services Director 
N. Parks and Recreation Director 

James Wiley said this Monday they started some different phases at the 
Sports Complex. The comfort station construction has begun. The fields are 
starting to take shape. The wall behind the residents is slated to begin on 
Monday. The goal is to get the parking lot paved before the end of this 
construction season. It is looking good there. Utility work has been ongoing 
on Errecart and hopefully it will be completed in the next couple of days. 
There is a little bit of storm drain left. 

Councilwoman Simons asked about a charge on the warrants. James 
answered it was for repairs to some playground equipment. It took a while to 
get a new piece molded to fix it. Those parts are expensive. 

Curtis Calder asked for an update on Centennial Park. James said the 
sod went in today. Tomorrow is the deadline for the project and he felt they 
would meet that just fine. They will be working on a punch list from that 
point. 

0. Civil Engineer 
Bob Thibault clarified that leaky manhole behind the jail was ground 

water leaking into the system and not grey water leaking out. 
P. Building Official 

II. APPROPRIATIONS 

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

** A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilman Keener, to 
approve the warrants. . 

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0) 

BREAK 

Councilman Schmidtlein arrived at 5:28 p.m. 

V. 5:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible action on an appeal filed pursuant to Elko 
City Code 3-2-22(H), appealing the Elko City Planning Commission's decision to 
deny Variance No. 9-18, filed by Moises Luna for a reduction of the required 
interior side yard setback from 5 1/2' to O' and the required rear yard setback 
from 10' to O' for an accessory building within an R (Single-Family and Multi
Family Residential) Zoning District, located generally on the north side of Benti 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 7 of14 



Way, approximately 257' east of Spruce Road (927 Benti Way), and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The Planning Commission considered the subject variance on September 6, 2018 
and took action to deny the variance. Subsequently, the applicant appealed the 
Planning Commission's decision. CL 

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained the subject property was displayed on the overhead. 
The property fronts Benti Way. The back abuts Peace Park. The property is developed setback 
to setback. This is part of the 8 Miles Estates Subdivision. It has a 5 foot easement along each 
side property line but not along the back property line due to drainage. The City Building 
Department delivered a stop work order when the construction was spotted. The accessory 
structure was being built in the rear and side setbacks. Mr. Luna applied for a variance and the 
Planning Commission denied it. She went over some items in her memo that determined the 
denial on the variance. She showed some pictures on the overhead. 

Councilman Keener said he was at the meeting and heard the testimony of the Commissioners. 
It presents a unique situation in this case but there are numerous sheds in the city that are not in 
conformance. It would be different if this had been a bully barn situation. If Mr. Luna would cut 
the 4X4's that are in the concrete, would that solve the situation? 

Ms. Laughlin said she didn't know how he built the shed but she thought it was built onto the 
concrete. It was not built on a skid such as the ones sold at T-rix. It would need to be built 
outside the setbacks to meet with code. 

Councilman Keener said is difficult to him when there are non-conforming sheds in the area. 
Typically the pre-fab unit is just moved in but his was built on site. It doesn't seem fair that this 
individual was singling out. 

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, felt he wasn't singled out because of the shed. It 
looked like he was doing an addition to the house that caught the attention of the building 
department. 

Councilman Schmidtlein asked if that could be dismantled from the concrete? 

Moises Luna, 927 Benti Way, answered he could cut the posts and there is no cement pad. He 
just put thicker slabs of plywood underneath. He can make it movable. 

Councilman Keener stated his concern that if this is denied we need to treat everyone the same. 
The Building and Planning Department will have hundreds of other non-conforming type 
structures around the city. What are we going to do about those? 

Mayor Johnson said there are other properties in Elko that were provided with notices. Will this 
be a new project across the community? Where the setbacks are concerned, this can be a life
saving issue. When we look at these, we need to be careful what else is happening in the 
community. Why should we enforce the code? There are good reasons the setbacks are in place. 
The decision tonight will be tough. 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 8 of 14 



Mr. Luna read a statement: 
The reason he is here is because he started building a storage shed and was 90% completed 
when he got shut down by the City of Elko. As you guys already know, my storage shed got built 
with zero setbacks. Due to his backyard being 20 feet wide, taking measurements from the fence 
to his home, if he was to go back 10 feet, that would leave him with only ten feet. Then he would 
have to leave at least 5 feet from his window, leaving him with only a 5 foot shed If he was to 
make it longer, he would have to leave the shed in the middle of his yard He has a son that is 3 
months old right now and he would like to leave as much yard as possible for him for when he is 
older. He and his wife have worked hard to buy their home that they purchased in September of 
2017. They have invested a lot of money on improvements to the home, including the storage 
shed When he started constructing his storage shed he had drainage issues from his neighbor 
where he had to add a French drain system to that side of the property to avoid his shed having 
any problems sinking. He added a grading drain system as well, right next to the shed for extra 
security. He feels it would be very unfair for him to have to tear down his shed after investing so 
much time and money. He has invested thousands of dollars into it. It doesn't include the $750. 
that he has had to pay for the two variances. If he hadn't invested so much in this shed he 
wouldn't mind tearing it down. His intent was never to bypass any of the Elko City Codes. As a 
matter of fact, before he started constructing the shed, he called the City of Elko Building 
Department for advice and asked if he needed a permit. He was told as long as it wasn't over 
200 square feet it didn 't require a permit. But he was never notified of the setback requirements. 
He didn't know that was a different department and all that stuff He just called and they told 
him he didn't need the building permit, which that is how it is, but he never knew about the 
setback requirements. And then he never thought it would be an issue because many homes 
around Elko have storage sheds built next to their fence lines as well. Jfhe was to tear down his 
shed he would not be able to comply with Code 3-2-1-7, making him use his garage as storage. 
He hoped they could take his points into consideration and put themselves in his shoes. He does 
not believe he is hurting anyone or causing any issues from his neighbors who he has already 
spoken to. He is simply trying to give his family a nice home and a yard 

Councilman Schmidtlein wondered if it was moved from the setback from the side of the house, 
even with the flood plain on the backside, if we move it to the east, would he meet the setback 
requirements there? Nothing is ever going to be built on the back of that property. 

Mayor Johnson said this is an issue in the City and there other properties that are currently under 
review. He knows of houses that have been up for sale and couldn't sell because they didn't 
meet setbacks. It is a big deal and the City needs to be careful with this. If there was a way to 
move the shed and meet the setbacks, that might be one course of action. 

Councilwoman Simons thought the easiest thing, if there were an alley behind their house, would 
that be okay? 

Ms. Laughlin answered, just on the back. He would still have to be 5.5 feet from the side. 

Councilwoman Simons thought if you have a park there, does it provide the same or does it 
resolve the same issues as having an alley or a street? Is that where the code needs to be 
changed? Maybe there are more exemptions than have been included in the code. 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 9 of14 



Councilman Keener said he walked back there this afternoon and it is very steep and rocky and 
full of weeds. There would be minimum to zero impact to the park on the back. 

Mr. Wilkinson said if there was a zero setback on a park area, you really don't have the life 
safety issues, you don't have the fire requirements, the building permit and all that, but today that 
is not what the code says. 

Councilwoman Simons said there are situations in Elko that we couldn't do anything about and 
we need that easement. She was wondering if adding more of these unique circumstances ... 

Mr. Wilkinson said it would make sense if you revised the code that said "Open Spaces." It's 
really about setbacks serving a couple of functions, maintaining some level of yard space so 
people can enjoy their property, and more importantly, it's about protecting neighboring 
properties from each other. 

Councilman Rice said he understands the predicament and it is unfortunate that building didn't 
mention setback requirements when he called. What are other practices in other communities in 
terms of open spaces and setbacks? His only solution he can see is to saw it off at the 4X4 and 
move it 5 feet away from the western fence and then provide a variance. 

Mr. Wilkinson said he wouldn't be able to answer that today. They could do research about 
changing the code for open space. The Mayor is cautioning the Council on some other legal 
issues that the City has going on. This code was drafted when subdivisions abutted alleys. All 
your utilities were in the alleyways. Many times your garage was your accessory building. This 
is a remnant of how subdivisions used to be designed. We don't include alleyways in 
subdivisions at all anymore. 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, asked if an access easement by definition of Code, qualify as an 
alleyway? Could the City established an access easement around the rear lot lines of all of those 
houses and qualify as an alley? 

Ms. Laughlin answered the rear lot line in that subdivision does not have any rear easement. The 
easement is on the Peace Park side of it. It is a public utility and drainage easement on the Peace 
Park side. It is similar to what an alley would be. 

Mr. Wilkinson said it was done to accommodate the grading and the drainage in the area. There 
are definitions for streets and alleys that they can look at but it is well defined on what 
establishes streets or alleys. 

Mr. Calder said there had been instances of access easements being considered public roadways 
throughout the City. He thought most of them had been rectified. If there is already an access 
easement, and it could qualify as an alley, perhaps a zero setback could already be allowable on 
the rear. 

Councilman Keener stated by changing the code to allow for a zero setback along the north 
property line along the back, that would bring two other non-conforming buildings into code, 
besides this one we are talking about. 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 10 of 14 



Ms. Laughlin said the structure has been built over the drainage and utility easement on the side 
lot line. If the variance was approved, that easement would have to be vacated. 

Councilwoman Simons wants to look to see if there was anything else that could be added to the 
code to allow this. 

Councilman Rice said he knows Mr. Luna tried to do this the right way but unfortunately he 
didn't learn about the setbacks and the building is out of compliance. He has received calls from 
constituents regarding similar situations. He can't support granting a variance on this one. 
Unfortunately, if this is not granted he would need to take this down and suffer a financial loss. 
He was sorry for that. The codes serve a broader purpose in the community. 

Mayor Johnson said there is no doubt in his mind that he needs to disclose that he is the owner of 
a storage business. He may need to recuse himself and should pass the gavel to Mayor Pro 
Tempore Rice. He felt he was too close with the ministorage business to vote. 

Jeff Ford, Building Official, said this isn't something done regularly. He felt there was some 
wiggle room for this if he put in a smaller shed. 

Councilman Keener said for someone that is a new homeowner, if you see that your neighboring 
properties have sheds, you assume that is okay. We need to find some kind of way to work 
around this. 

Mayor Pro Tern Rice understood that position. He indicated, in his neighborhood there are non
compliant car ports and they are aluminum structures. A code enforcer would be very busy. We 
find ourselves undoing the mistakes of the previous councils a lot. This is just like curb, gutter 
and sidewalk exemptions. There is an option to simply make a smaller building. It isn't prudent 
to grant this variance because other people in the neighborhood are out of compliance as well. 

Councilwoman Simons agreed they shouldn't grant a variance. She felt the easement in the back 
makes this unique. 

Mayor Pro Tern Rice asked if she was suggesting tabling this? 

Councilwoman Simons answered yes. Let's table this and look at it further. We should add 
things to the code. 

Mayor Pro Tern Rice felt the ordinance was good. The only option we can give Mr. Luna is to 
make the building smaller. That would be in the best interest of the community. If we table it, it 
is dangerous to start changing ordinances because of one case. 

Mr. Wilkinson said if this variance were to be denied, and he felt there has been enough 
discussion that maybe staff could look at other circumstances where zero setbacks would be 
appropriate, but if this were denied and we were to have a code revision take place before the 
applicant were to completely demolish and remove his structure, you may see a code revision 
that would address the rear yard setback. Then if he had not demolished his structure, not 
completed his structure, he would then have the opportunity if the code were to be amended or 
revised, that if he were to move it east, he could then be in conformance with the current code. 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 11 of14 



Mayor Pro Tern Rice asked about tabling until the next meeting and give staff a chance to go out 
and come up with some solutions that would probably require Mr. Luna to uproot that and move 
it somehow in his yard. 

Mr. Wilkinson said if you were to look at the codes and the findings required, the variance would 
be denied today. If there is not a timing for demolition and the code were sequentially changed, 
and Mr. Luna had an opportunity to revisit his project and were to comply with side yard 
setbacks, we don't have the life safety issues, that might provide an opportunity. 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons to deny the variance and cease 
construction at this time, with direction to staff to look at possibility of adding exemptions 
to the zero requirement setback. 

The motion died for lack of action. 

Councilman Keener asked if they should do a motion to table until such time staff has time to 
investigate. 

Councilwoman Simons asked if they would worry about denying it right now. 

Councilman Keener answered, right. 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons to table the motion. 

Mr. Wilkinson that they were opening themselves for some issues. 

Mayor Pro Tern Rice wasn't sure if tabling this was the right way to do this. We can't grant the 
variance. We don't have the codes that allow us to grant a variance. 

Mr. Wilkinson said there has been a lot of discussion so staff will be looking at the code. The 
motion should be specific to the agenda item. That may be the best we can do today in 
consideration of some other legal issues that the City has pending on other variance issues. 

The motion died for lack of a second. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein, 
to table the appeal and direct staff to look for a remedy on the rear yard setback for the 
Benti Way location that borders the public property (Public Quasi-Public) of the Peace 
Park. 

Mayor Pro Tern Rice cautioned that staff has indicated that there are other legal matters the City 
is dealing with in similar situations. If we table this, we may be opening up a larger box of 
questions and concerns. 

Mr. Wilkinson said if this is tabled we would still have to have a hearing on an appeal. Tabling 
may not get us to where we need to be. 

Councilman Keener withdrew his motion. 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 12 of14 



Councilman Schmidtlein withdrew his second. 

Mayor Pro Tern Rice thought they needed to deny the variance. Staff has indicated that they 
have an interest in looking at the ordinance for some possible changes. If the ordinance is 
changed, there is a possibility that Mr. Luna's shed could be in compliance with some minor 
changes. 

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, said he is thinking about open space and zero setbacks. He sees 
open space as land that could be easily be developed in the future for a different purpose. This 
might be one of those things where we are setting up future generations for failure. 

Mr. Wilkinson thought that was a good point and the they can address that easily with staff. The 
City can deal with those issues. We would not allow it to be developed to a setback on open 
space that could be in the future developed for any type of land use other than public parks or 
something like that. That can be dealt with in a definition. 

Mr. Thibault thought even a park like this can be developed into a different use someday. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein to deny Mr. Luna's request for a 
variance and allow staff to look into any future remedies that something may transpire that 
may be possible to ... 

The motion was restated below. 

Mr. Wilkinson felt the motion should be restricted to the agenda item. 

* * A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilwoman 
Simons, to deny Mr. Luna's request for the appeal. 

Councilman Schmidtlein told Mr. Luna it is difficult to approve this and they have an obligation 
and responsibility to enforce the code. In the near future there may be possibilities you could 
come back to the Planning Commission. We were trying to figure out a way for Mr. Luna to 
keep his structure where it is at but it would have to move to the east. 

Mr. Luna said he would bring a list of everyone in the neighborhood with sheds so action could 
be taken on them. 

Mayor Pro Tern Rice called for a vote. 

The motion passed. (4-1 Mayor Johnson abstained.) 

Councilman Keener thought it would be helpful for staff to go to different sellers to advise 
buyers about the setbacks. 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 13 of 14 



item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive 
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

Councilman Keener announced there was a Community Concert next door starting at 7p.m. this 
evening. 

There being no further business, Mayor Chris Johnson adjourned the meeting. 

Mayor Chris Johnson Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk 

09/25/2018 City Council Minutes Page 14 of 14 



Agenda Item II.D. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible authorization to solicit bids for a new 
service truck with body and crane, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: October 9, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION 

4. Time Required: 3 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The Water Reclamation Facility is in need of a new service 
truck. This item has been budgeted for in the current fiscal year. The old service 
truck is 21 years old and is undersized for the job requirements. The new unit will 
be a crew cab 4 x 4, 19,500 GVW Chassis, dual wheel, with 14' body and 7,500 lb. 
crane with a minimum reach of 30'. RL 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: 
Budget amount available: $175,000.00 
Fund name: WRF 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Bid Specs 

9. Recommended Motion: Move to authorize soliciting bids for a new service truck. 

10. Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 09/20/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA 

REQUIREMENTS, SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

TO FURNISH 

ONE (1) NEW SERVICE TRUCK WITH BODY AND CRANE 

WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY 

SEPTEMBER 2018 

CITY OF ELKO 
WATER RECLAMATION DEPARTMENT 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Invitation to Bid ............................................................................................................................ 1 

Bidding Information ..................................................................................................................... 2 

Special Terms and Conditions ............................................................................................•........ 3 

Specifications ................................................................................................................................ 5 

Bid Proposal Forms .................................................................................................................... 12 



CITY OF ELKO 
INVITATION TO BID 

Sealed bids will be received until 3:00 P.M., local time, on Thursday, November 1, 2018, at the 
office of the Elko City Clerk; 1751 College Avenue; Elko, Nevada 89801, for the following: 

ONE (1) NEW SERVICE TRUCK WITH BODY AND CRANE 

Proposals received after that time will not be accepted. Bidders mailing their bids assume the risk 
of late delivery. 

The submitted bids will be opened at the Elko City Hall immediately after the published deadline for 
acceptance of said bids with City staff present. All interested parties are invited to be in attendance 
at the bid opening. 

The City Council may formally accept or reject the bids at their regular meeting after 4:00 P.M., 
local time, Tuesday, November 13, 2018. Specifications and other information may be obtained 
at the office of the Elko City Clerk. 

The City of Elko reserves the right to accept or reject any or all items specified in the bid request as 
is deemed in the best interest of the City of Elko. 

Dated this 10th day of October, 2018. 

Publish: Elko Daily Free Press 
October 13, 2018 

CITY OF ELKO, 
CITY COUNCIL 

BY: ---------
Ryan Limberg 
Utilities Director 

1 



CITY OF ELKO 
BIDDING INFORMATION 

The City of Elko reserves the right to accept or reject any or all items specified in the bid request 
and reserves the right to waive any minor technicalities in the preparation of these bidding 
documents or specifications. 

The award may be made to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. The lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder will be judged based on price, warranty, conformance to specifications, 
materials, or equipment offered and their adaptability to the required purposes, and the best 
interest of the public--each of such factors being considered. 

A. Sealed bids are to be filed with the Office of the City Clerk; 1751 College Avenue; Elko, 
Nevada; prior to 3:00 P.M., local time, Thursday, November 1, 2018. 

8. All bids shall be enclosed and sealed in an envelope and endorsed: 

ONE (1) NEW SERVICE TRUCK WITH BODY AND CRANE 

C. The submitted bids will be opened at Elko City Hall immediately after the published deadline 
for acceptance of said bids with Elko City staff present. All interested parties are invited to be in 
attendance at the bid opening. 

D. The City Council may formally accept or reject bids at their regular meeting after 4:00 P.M., 
local time, on Tuesday, November 13, 2018. 

E. Item to be bid: 

ONE (1) NEW SERVICE TRUCK WITH BODY AND CRANE 

F. Bids will be accepted only on the form provided, along with completed specification sheet 
indicating compliance of unit offered and any other information as requested in bidding documents. 

2 



CITY OF ELKO 
SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

A. Bidder is required to submit descriptive data or printed specifications describing unit offered. 
Failure to comply with this request may be cause for non-acceptance of bid. 

B. ADHERENCE TO SPECIFICATIONS: Deviations to any of the requirements set forth in 
this bid shall be so stated in written form in space provided or attached on separate sheet if 
additional space is required. 

C. Service and Parts Availability: May be determining factor in award of this bid. State 
name and location of nearest service and parts facility: 

Phone No: -------------
CONTACT PERSON NAME: _________________ _ 

(Please Print) 

D. Delivery: Unit shall be transported to the City of Elko Fleet Maintenance Department, 975 
Water Street, Elko, Nevada; completely furnished and ready for operation. Unit must be 
delivered prior to June 15, 2019. 

E. Warranty: Minimum warranty shall be one year on the Crane Unit and Manufacturer's 
standard warranty for the cab and chassis. Copy of warranty must be furnished with 
submitted bid. Successful bidder shall provide warranty service within twenty-four (24) hours 
after notification that such service is required on any vehicle that is inoperative due to failures 
covered by warranty. In the event such service is not provided within the specified time, the City of 
Elko may elect to have the repairs made or make the repairs in their own shop and bidder shall 
reimburse the City of Elko for all costs incurred for such repairs. 

All warranty and recall service shall be performed at an authorized service facility or on-site 
if applicable. 

F. Bidder shall be prepared to give a complete demonstration of the merits of the vehicle 
offered under the normal working conditions of the City of Elko Water Reclamation Department any 
time prior to an Award being made. 

G. Questions pertaining to bidding documents shall be directed to the City of Elko Water 
Reclamation Facility Superintendent; 1751 College Avenue; Elko, NV 89801 or by calling 
(775)777-7386. 

H. The laws of the State of Nevada shall govern the validity, construction, performance and 
effect of the contract or lease, which to successful bidder shall execute. Jurisdiction and venue 
for any action related to the contract or lease shall be in the District Court of the Fourth Judicial 
District, Elko County, Nevada. 

3 



CITY OF ELKO, NEV ADA 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR 

ONE (1) NEW SERVICE TRUCK WITH BODY AND CRANE 

GENERAL: The City of Elko, Nevada is accepting bid proposals for 

ONE (1) NEW SERVICE TRUCK WITH BODY AND CRANE 

Equipment furnished under this specification shall be the manufacturer's current conventional design 
for the type and the allied equipment specified. All necessary accessories customarily furnished 
whether stipulated herein or not, with such modifications and attachments as may be necessary to 
enable the equipment to function reliably and efficiently in sustained operation. Further, all equipment 
furnished under this specification shall comply with the most current Federal Regulations and Laws 
along with all requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes. 

Any use of specific names and/or model numbers in the specifications is not intended to restrict 
the bidder or any seller or manufacturer, but is included solely for the purpose of indicating the 
type, size, and quality of the equipment considered best adapted to the use of the City of Elko. 

The unit will be used in Elko, Nevada at an altitude of approximately 5,000 to 6,000 feet. 

UNIT DESCRIPTION FOR: 

ONE (1) NEW SERVICE TRUCK WITH BODY AND CRANE 

The following are required minimum options: 

GENERAL: 
This specification describes One (1) new Crew Cab, 4x4- 19,500 GVW Chassis with a 14' body and 
7,500 lb. hydraulic crane with a minimum 30' ofreach. Cab and Chassis must be a current production 
model year. Prototypes are NOT acceptable. Basic requirements shall include, but are not limited to 
the following: 

Equipment bid must conform to all State of Nevada and/or Federal regulations, whichever is more 
stringent, as relates to Safety, Pollution Control (exhaust emission and noise), etc. 

4 



SPECIFICATIONS 

MEETS? 
GENERAL Yes No 

A. All equipment furnished under this contract shall be new, of current production, and 
include complete installation prior to delivery 

B. Accessories not specifically mentioned herein, but necessary to furnish a complete 
unit ready for use, shall also be included 

C. Unit shall conform to the best practice known to the body trade in design, quality of 
material and workmanship. 

D. Chassis and cab are to be designed and manufactured in the United States of 
America 

MEETS? 
CHASSIS ' Yes No 

A. Cab Chassis shall be equipped with a minimum 200" wheel base, minimum 108" 
cab to axle, and a minimum 19,500 lb. GVW 

B. Minimum 6-cylinder turbo charged diesel engine 
C. Automatic transmission 
D. Transmission Power Take-Off provision to include transmission mounted live drive 

and stationary mod PTO 
E. 4.88 Axle Ratio or approved equal 
F. Spare tire, wheel, & 6-ton jack to be included 
G. Engine block heater 
H. Cloth split bench seat to include the following: 

- Center armrest 
- Cup holder 

I. Backup camera to be included 
J. Airbags 

Manufacturer's standard 
K. Minimum of (2) 12V DC power outlets 
L. Heater and air conditioning with cab air filter 
M . Manual tilt/telescoping steering column 
N. Factory installed trailer brake control 
0. Factory upfitter interface module/switches 
P. Full vinyl/rubber floor covering 
Q. Double leaf super spring installed on same side as crane is installed on 
R. Cab to be painted white 

MEETS? 
CRANE BODY SHELL SPECIFICATIONS Yes No 

A. Overall dimensions as follows: 
1) Minimum 94" overall width 
2) Minimum 168" overall length 

B. Compartment tops are to be constructed of heavy-duty, fully welded 1/8" steel 
C. Compartment backs are to be constructed of heavy-duty, fully welded 1/8" steel 

5 



D. Compartment bottoms are to be constructed of 12 ga. steel 
E. Body shall incorporate a headache rack at the front of the body 
F. Body shall have four minimum 6,900 lb. recessed tie down rings mounted in load bed 

floor 
G. Body to include fold down side panels on curb side and tail gate. Heavy duty 

construction 

MEETS? 
BODY SPECIFICATIONS Yes No 

A. 1st street side compartment behind the cab to the minimum 48" H x 36" W x 12" D 
with double doors or approved equal. 

B. 2nd street side compartment to be minimum 70" L x 30" H x 12" D divided into three 
individual compartments with individual doors, closing and locking mechanism or 
approved equal. 

C. Rear outriggers are to be hydraulic in and out and up and down on both sides. 
D. Manual control valve to operate outriggers 
E. Bumper shall incorporate a 2" receiver tube and trailer safety chain rings 
F. 7-way RV style trailer socket to be installed at rear bumper 
G. Mud flaps to be installed behind rear axle 
H. Body exterior to be painted white to match cab and chassis 
I Body load bed floor to be diamond tread, anti-skid surface or approved equal. 
J. Back up alarm to be installed 
K. Body warranty to be manufacturer's standard warranty. 

Please state warranty: 

MEETS? 
·- .•. - ... 

CRANE SPECIFICATIONS YES NO 
A. Jib Cranes will not be accepted 
B. Crane is to be mounted on the street side of the body at the rear 
C. The crane lifting moment shall be minimum 40,000 lbs. 
D. Hydraulic System: All crane functions to be hydraulically driven by an externally 

driven hydraulic pump. Electric over hvdraulic will not be accented 
E. Rotation System: Rotation is 360° continuous 
F. Control: To be wireless radio control 
G. Boom Elevation: Boom to be capable of operating from -5° to 75° or approved 

equal 
H. Crane shall have a minimum of 30' of hydraulic horizontal reach. 
I. Crane to be painted white or black 
J. Hot shift PTO mounted to automatic transmission and hydraulic pump 

6 



LIGHTING, WIRING, AND SAFETY ITEMS YES NO 
A. Manufactures standard stop/tail/tum. Emergency, backup lights to be mounted at 

the rear of the body. 

MANUALS, WARRANTY, AND TRAINING YES NO 
A. Dealer PDI and delivery to be included and on-site training at customer's location 

by factory authorized person(s) included at time of delivery 
B. (2) complete parts and service manuals for chassis, body, and crane to be provided 

at time of delivery 

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE NO. 1 YES NO 
A. Self-contained, diesel powered, welder with Air Compressor and Generator to 

include: AC Stick/MIG Range 10-225A, DC Stick/MIG Range 25-300A, 11,000 
Watt Generator (13,000W Peak), 31 CCFM Compressor 80-160 PSI, or Approved 
Equal. 

List any deviations from bid specifications: ____________________ _ 

7 



CITY OF ELKO 
BID PROPOSAL FORMS 

Bid Proposal to furnish and deliver 
ONE (1) NEW SERVICE TRUCK WITH BODY AND CRANE 

Total Base Bid Price in Numbers: $ ____________ _ 

Total Base Bid Price in written form: _________________ _ 

Bid Price Additive Alternate 1 

Total Bid Price in numbers: $ ____________ _ 

Total Bid Price in written form: ---------------------

The undersigned declares that he/she has carefully examined and understands the bidding 
documents. Also, the requested information as noted in bidding documents has been included 
with this form. 

Company Submitting Bid By: Company Representative 

Mailing Address Phone Number 

City, State, Zip Fax Number 

***USE THIS FORM TO SUBMIT BID PROPOSAL. ATTACH COMPLETED SPECIFICATION 
SHEET, DESCRIPTIVE DATA, BROCHURES, "EXCEPTIONS TO BIDDING CONDITIONS AND 
SPECIFICATIONS" (IF NEEDED) AND ANY OTHER INFORMATION REQUIRED IN BIDDING 

DOCUMENTS*** 

8 



Agenda Item ILE. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible final acceptance of the Cedar Street 
Reconstruction Project Phase 2, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: October 9, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: This Project was awarded to Great Basin Engineering in 
the amount of $1,660,686.79, on February 2, 2018. There were adjustments in the 
quantities installed in the amount of $43,174.03 for a total of $1,703,860.82. Great 
Basin Engineering has satisfactorily completed the project in conformance with the 
plans and specification. DS 

6. Budget Information: 
Appropriation Required: $1,703,860.82 
Budget amount available: $2,647,760 
Fund name: Capital Construction - $1,458,533.01; Water Fund $209,604.46; Ad 
Valorem Capital- $35,723.35 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: A spreadsheet, from Great Basin Engineering 
Contractors, detailing the final project quantities approved by Carter Engineering, 
LLC. 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve final acceptance of the Cedar Street Reconstruction 
Project Phase 2, in the amount of $1,703,860.82. 

10. Prepared By: Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: Lana Carter, lanalcarter@live.com 
Great Basin Engineering 

Created on 09/26/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



GREAT BASIN 
t-n11n,-er1 n, tontr.tclor 

Project Cedar Street R~nstructlon • Pha$.e 2 

PYIP: El.·11118«7 

1 -
ITTM DESCRIPTION 

l M obtltu1hon / Oemob,hr.tJOn 
2 Tr.otfk;control 
) Removt! E.10s1inc Curb & Gvttrr 

• Re.matt &1sli"1 Sldewat\: 

s Re.move ElMting o~ 
6 Remove £:dst1nc As,fon & Vahev Gutter 
1 Remove Stairs 

8 Rem~e & Repl~f' Fence 

9 Saw Cut Concrt'lt 

1D Remov• E<lsting Droo lnlels 

ll Re1ncwe [Jdsl,Of! Busht-, 

12 Putvetue buntns Pavement & Saw 
13 i~ 1 UH'b & Gutter 
14 6' vaUev Gutt« & Aj>roos 

15 2' Vill.!e\' Gutter 
16 4" Thick Con<TNt Stdewalk 

11 I hlc.~ned [dge Orivewav Crou111« 

18 lhic.kened Edge- Cross w an. 
19 Thid•ned Eda• ~.n, 
zo Ba,ne,-Curb 

21 s.dewalk Cross Driilln 
22 2'x4' ADA Trunc•tN Oonies 
23 4 " Acce,-SN>&e eu,b R.lmo\ 

24 2·St•pS~lf 
25 3--St~p St.aw 

26 4" AC 

27 10" Road llod Mod w/ On SM Mll•r .. l 

28 3" AC 

29 9'" Type 2, ct.u B A.•1eRate 8.ne 

30 Fln•sh Gr•de / SOIi Amendmenl (6" O.pth) 

31 l " Washod Roel< Mulch (4" D<plh) 
12 1·2" Washed Angular Mock Mulch 14" Oepll>) 

33 l •l/2" ·l" W,..l,ed Angular Rock Mulch (4" D•prh) 

34 Shredded 8alA Mulch ,1t Shrubs 
35 uir1• Boulde.., (2 '·3.S'J 

36 Smatt Bouldc" (<2·J 
37 lrrigatt0n System & Compone-nt.s 

38 Trett 
39 Shrubs 

40 SeeJNitte Bed 
4 1 Domed Grite Seepage ~ Lnt,.•na 

42 MocMoed Oroo lniel 

43 6. AOS N-12 su,rm Ora1n 
44 18"x6" Rect>,,.ularTube Cutwn 

45 6'1f6" 1reoch o,-..1n 
46 1s· ,5• Trench O~ln 
47 Keyttone ltcUilmnl. W»M 

48 Survt"f Monuments 
49 Ad)ust Watef v~tve Bcx.n to Grade 

so Gr>d""' 
SI Over £> • Ex Subgrode 

52 Over b: - Geotut1Je 

53 Over£> Typo 2, Clil« 8 

54 Abandon and Remove ttydrant 

ss RefT'OYe v.-tve Box.C\ 
56 Remov• E>nsb"I 6·"4• Cross 

57 Remove ExlstlNr 4• Cron 

ORIGINAi. <Xllll'IIIACT lffMS 
I I IO I INST.llUD I T UNIT ·r 

QTY. QTY UNIT PRICE 

l l LS s 17.25904 S 
l 1 LS s 1,72719 S 

3,226 3,728 Lf s 8.22 S 
6,981 6ilD3 sr s J .14 S 

1.351 1,351 SF s 401 s 
1.033 l,lll sr s 400 S 

s s [A s 541.72 S 
143 143 Lf s 4093 $ 

206 248 Lf s S 28 s 
I 1 EA s 447 79 $ 
1 I LS s 2.141 .85 s 

108.!>00 108,500 Sf s 0.34 s 
3.707 3,709 lI s 5012 $ 
7,306 2,306 sr s 2017 S 

6 6 sr s 39 62 S 
12,326 12.672 Sf s 11 62 S 

3.179 3,346 sr s IS 31 S 
390 404 sr s 18 JS S 

14 14 sr s 2904 S 
7 21 u s 41.19 S 

I l £,l s 657 14 S 

14 14 fA s 157 53 S 

l ,3SO 1,372 Sf s 23.19 S 

l l lA s l.19359 S 
1 2 EA s l.12396 S 

75,430 7S,833 SF s 3 38 S 
75,430 75,8)) Sf s 100 S 
7,168 8.41) SI s 3.91 s 
7,168 8,413 Sf s 2 41 s 
18.500 18.SOO Sf s l 02 S 

8 8 CY s 259 64 S 
190 190 CY s 137 87 S 

35 35 CY s 756 80 $ 

2 2 CY s 309 71 S 

735 235 CY s 134 78 S 

110 110 CY s 145 48 $ 

17.600 17,9(,() Sf s 7 57 5 
34 )) [A s 1,286 22 S 

"30 427 (.,l s 26.20 $ 
14,070 14,070 er s 3.31 $ 

• 4 [A s 1,45090 S 

16 16 [,l s 7,409 SO S 
137 147 Lf s 20.91 S 

16 16 u s 13169 S 
)4 )4 Lf s 261 60 S 
128 178 lI s 333 93 S 
283 274 lI s 169 JS S 

2 2 [A s 616 68 S 

6 6 £A s S75.96 S 

l I LS s 59,466.20 S 

soo U l [,l s 11 38 S 

930 0 <;f s 2.lO S 

soo UI CY s 1138 S 
um;,,.., 

2 2 £A s 1,014 63 s 
8 8 £A s 11S 20 S 

I 1 £A s 99 $2 S 

I l £A s 99.S2 S 

PROGRESS P.lYMCNT CCIITtflC.llE 

11D 

DCTlNSION 

17,2S9.D4 S 
1.71789 S 

26,517.72 $ 
1 1.9Z0.34 s 

5,417.Sl s 
4,331.00 s 
2,708.60 S 
5,852 99 s 
1))87.68 s 

447 79 S 
2, 1418$ s 

36.890.00 S 
185,794 84 S 
46,512.02 S 

73772 S 
143,llS.12 S 
50,201 49 S 
7,090 20 S 

'106 S6 s 
211833 S 
651.14 S 

3.605 42 s 
31.306.SO S 

1.193.59 s 
2,2092 s 

1!>-1.95) 40 S 

75.430 00 S 
28.026.88 S 
17.346.56 S 
18.170 00 $ 
2.on12 s 

76,19S.30 S 
8,98800 s 

619 41 S 

31,673.JO S 

16.002 80 S 
45.732.00 S 
43,731 48 S 
ll.4&1 00 S 
46,712 40 S 

5,803 60 s 
38,552 00 S 

2,864.67 s 
2, 107.04 s 
8.89-C 40 s 

42.143 04 S 
47,869 45 S 

1,133 36 s 
3,45S 76 s 

59.466 Z0 S 
5,690.00 S 
] ,139.00 S 

5.690.00 S 

2.02916 s 
921 60 S 
99.52 S 

99 S2 S 

Pay Rt;aUCU Ng. 06 
invok• Gll8001-o6 

tNSrAUEO 

lXlENSIDN 

17,25904 
1,727.89 

26.534 16 
71 ,675 ., 

S,417.Sl 
4,452 00 

2.708 60 
S,85299 
l.]0944 

447 29 
2,14185 

PREVIOUS 811LING 

QlY I .lMOUNT 

0.8 S 13,807.1.3 

I O S 1,717 89 

322JIO S 16,534 16 

6903.0 S Jl,675 42 

!3SI O S 5,417.51 

1 ltl O S 4,4S2.00 

s.o s 2,708 60 
143 0 S 5,852.99 
14&.0 S 1,30944 

1.0 $ 447 29 

IO S 2,14185 

36,890 00 108500.0 S 36,89000 
185,B<JS 08 3709 C S 185,895.08 
•6,$1202 2306 0 S d6,512.D2 

23772 60 S n1n 
147,248 64 12672 0 S 147,248.64 
Sl.177 26 33460 S Sl.27776 

7.34-41l 404.0 S 7,344 72 

40656 14 0 S 406 S6 
864 99 210 S 864 99 
657 14 10 S &Sl.14 

3,605 42 140 S 3.605.42 
31,816 68 1372 0 S 3),816 68 

1.193 59 IO S 1,193 .59 
2,147 92 2 0 S 1,147.92 

256,)lS 54 7S&33 0 S 256,315 S4 
75,833 00 75833 0 S 7S,833.00 
ll,89,Sl 8413 0 S 32,894.83 
20,359 46 84HOS 20,359 46 
18,870 00 185000 S 18,870.00 
2,077.12 80 S 2.07111 

26,195.30 1900 S 26,l'lS..30 
8,98800 35 0 S 8,988.00 

619 42 2 0 S 61942 

31,673.30 1350 S 31,673 30 
16,002 80 1100 S 16,001.80 
46,157 20 l7'.l60 0 $ 46, 157 20 
42.445 26 32.0 S 41, 159 04 
11,40090 347.0 S 9.164.90 
46.712 40 14070.0 S 46,712 .40 

S.803 60 4 0 S 5.803 60 
38.552 00 ltiO S 38.552 00 
J,cmn 147.0 S 3,07371 
7,1071)4 16.0 S 2, 107.04 
8,894 40 34 0 S 8.894 40 

42.7004 1280 S 42,743 .04 

46.341.10 174 0 S 46,347 l O 
l ,23336 2 0 $ 1,233 36 
l ,4SS 76 6.0 S 3,4S5.76 

S9,466.ZO l O S S9,466.20 

1.490 78 1310 S l ,490 78 

0.0 S 
l .49078 1310 S 1,490.78 

2J»9 26 2.00 $ 1,029 26 
92160 800 S 921.60 

99 52 I 00 S 99.Sl 
!19 52 I 00 S 9951 

D.llE, 9/24/2DU 

PAYM£HT COMPIITAfflllS 
CURRENT SIU.L~G SIUINGS TO DAlE " REMAIN ING BAIANCl 

QTY .lMOUNT QTY .lMOUNT Complc,te QTY AMOUNT 

0.2 S l ,4S1 81 l O $ 17,25904 100!1 °" s 
0 .0 S IO S l.727 89 100!1 °" s 
0 .0 S )228 0 S 26,S34 16 100!1 °" s (16 44) 

0.0 $ 6903 0 S 21.675 41 "" 1, S 244 91 

00 S 13510 S 5,41751 100!1 °" s o.o s 1113 0 S 4,452 .00 10)" 3"'S (12000) 

0.0 S 5.0 S 2,708.60 100!1 °" s 
0.0 S 1430 $ S,152 99 100!1 °" s 
0.0 $ 148.0 S 1.309 44 I- ·20!< $ (221 76) 

0 .0 S l O S 447 29 1(- °" s 
0.0 S 10 S 2.141 85 100!1 OI,, $ 

0.0 S 108!>00 0 S )6,890 00 100!1 Ol<S 
0.0 S 3709 0 S 18S,89S.08 100!1 °" $ (100 24) 

00 S 2306 0 S 46,512 02 100!1 °" s 
00 S 60 S 137 72 JOO'll OI,,$ 

0.0 S 12671.0 S 147,248 64 103" -3% s (4,020.52) 

0.0 S 3346.0 S 51)2726 102'1 2,; $ ll.025 77) 

00 S 404 0 S 1,344 n 104% 4" S (2S4 Sl) 

00 S 14 0 S 40656 lOO'K °" s 
00 S 210S 864 99 300% 100% $ (S7666) 

0 .0 S l .C $ 65714 IOO!I <1'1 S 
00 S 140 $ 3,605 42 l OO!I °" s 
00 S 1372 0 $ 31 ,816.68 102'1 ·2" S (51018) 

00 S l O $ 1,193 59 100% °" s 
0.0 S 2 0 S 2,747 92 100% °" s 
00 S 75833 0 S 256.315 S4 101" It. S 11 ,361 14) 

00 S 758330 $ 75,833 00 101" 1% S (403 00) 

00 S 84130 S 32,89<1 83 ll 7% l N S (4,867 95) 

00 S 8413 0 S 20.3S9 46 117% 17% S (3,012 901 

0 .0 S 18SOOO S 18,87000 100% °" s 
00 S 80 S 7.07712 l OO'K °" s 
0.0 S 190( S 26,195 30 100% °" s 
0.0 S 35 C S 8.98800 IOOK (llo,$ 

00 S 2 0 S 619 42 100% °" s 
00 S 2350 S 31.673 30 1001' (llo, s 
0.0 S 1100 S 16,002 80 JOO% °" s 
00 S 17960.0 S 46,157 20 102" 2" s (925 20) 

1.0 S 1,286 22 33.0 S 42,445 26 97" 3"S l.286 22 
80.0 S 2, 136 00 4.270 S 11.400 90 - I" s 80 10 

00 S 140700 S 46,712 .40 100!1 °" s 
00 $ 4 0 5 5.803 60 100!! °" s 
0 .0 S 160 S 38.S52 00 100% °" s 
00 S 147.0 S 3,07377 ION ·7% s (20910) 

00 $ 16 0 S 2,107 04 1~ °"' s 
0.0 S )4 0 S 8.119440 100% °" s 
0.0 S 128 0 S 42,743 04 100K °" s 
0.0 S 274 0 $ 46,347 10 9N 3" S U22 lS 

00 S 2 0 S 1,233.36 100!1 °" s 
00 S 6 0 S 3,4SS 76 100!1 OIi$ 

0.0 $ IC S S9,C66.2D lOOK 0%S 
00 S 131 0 $ 1,490.78 26',, 74% S 4,199 22 

00 S 00 S °" 100% $ 2, 139 00 

0.0 S UlO S 1,490 78 16" 74'11 S 4,199 22 

0.0 S 10 S 2,029 26 1001' °" s 
0.0 S 80 S 92160 100!1 °" s 
o.o s 10 S 99 52 1001' °" s 
00 $ 10 S 99 S2 100% °" s 



S8 Remove Ex. Water Serv,~ CUrb Bo• 33 40 EA s 78.6S S l.59S.4S s J,14600 4000 S 3,14600 00 S 400 S 3,14600 121,C 21, S ISSO SS 
S9 1'" Water M et·er Box 33 38 EA s 2,062 7• s 68,070 42 S 78,384 lZ 3800 S 78,384.12 0.0 S 380 S 78,38412 1151' · 151' S (I0,3U 70) 
60 1• W•1er Service Connttt.on al'ld Une 31 37 EA s 1,56S 99 S 48.631.69 S 58,05161 37.00 S 58,0S2 63 0 .0 S 37.0 S 58,0S2 63 119% l9'o s (9.41394) 
61 1 .s• W11er Mettt 8oa1 2 2 EA s 4,'15049 S 1,90091 S 8.90098 2.00 S 8,900.91 00 S 2.0 S 8,900.98 lOOII 01'S 
62 l 5,• Water Strva Connect,on and Lll'lrt 1 2 EA s 1,73S 23 S 3,470A6 S 3,470 46 200 S 3)170 46 0.0 S 20 S 3,47046 lOOII m.s 
63 1ri6· Ho1 Tap CJIQY~te & hdfiU 2 l EA s 1,551 69 S 3,103 38 S 3,10138 2.00 S 3, 103.38 00 S l 0 S 3,103 38 JOOII °" s 
64 6•x6'" Hot hp E.icav•te & &adflfl l 1 [A s 1,241 36 S 1.241 36 S 1,24136 100 S l ,2•1.36 0 .0 S IO S 1.24136 100!! 00.S 
65 6"•4" Ttt (HG•MJ) l I EA s 89518 S 895.18 $ 89S 18 I 00 S 895. l l 0.0 S 10 S 895 18 JOOII O,-$ 
66 6" G&le Volvo {Ml) I 3 EA s 1.166 83 S 1,166 Bl s 3_!;0049 3.00 S 3,SOOA9 0.0 S 30 S l .500 49 )O(J% -~S (2.lll 66 
67 6. 4S Degree- Bend (M>) With Re'JUaints J l fA $ 40788 S 1,223.64 s 407 81 I 00 S 407.88 0.0 S IO$ <I0788 331', 67" S 815 76 
611 6'" 90 Oearee Bend (M.I) with Restr~lnt, I l EA s 431.31 S 431 31 S 431 11 I 00 S 411.31 0 .0 $ IO S 431 31 1omi 01'S 
69 6 • Romac: Coupl•"I 3 3 EA s 37100 $ 1,11300 S l,J 13 00 300 S 111300 00 S 30 S ).113 00 UIO'I °" s 
70 6" C,900 DR 18 W ater Pope 40 130 Lf s 18672 S 7,468.80 S 24,273 60 13000 S 24.273.60 o.o s 130.0 S 24.273 60 325,c 225" S (16,804 BO) 
11 Vatve flow.es 4 1 EA s 340.•s s l,J6UO $ 2,383 IS 7.00 $ 2,J8315 00 S 10 S 2.J83.l5 175" 75,. S {1,02135) 
72 Tr.alhc R•tod Box 2 2 EA s 1, 16S 65 S 2.331.30 5 2.Jll 30 2.00 S 2,33130 0.0 S 2 0 S 2.33130 UIO'I 01'S 
73 Ht• Hydr,1nl Aisem.bty 2 l EA s 7 6 11 64 $ 15,UJ 28 $ 15,221 21 200 S IS,123.28 0.0 s 20 5 15,213 28 IOO!I <l'IS 

Additive Ahunow 
Alt I 6"' ii: u• Concrete Pild 156 118 lf $ 10.62 S 1,656.72 S 1,25116 118 00 $ 1.25116 0.0 $ 1180 S 1.15316 76% 24% S 403 56 

Ah S.J Ut ility Trench for r,~ OptJC 1,885 1,8&5 Lf s 16.13 S 30.40S.05 S 30,40505 1885 S 30,405.0S 00 S 1885 0 S 30.405 OS lOOII °" s 
Alt 5.2 r,.n1c Ratod Pull lloxH 5 5 EA s 1,063 66 $ 5,Jl8.30 S S,Jll 30 s s S.ll8.JO 00 S so s S,JJ8 30 IOOII °" s 

TOT Al ORIGINAL CONTRACT ITEMS s 1,660,686.79 $ 1,703,960.12 101" S 1,696,91U9 °" $ 
5,174 03 S 1,701,860.81 10.3" s (43,174.03) 

COIITIIACTCIIANGl OllOUS PAYMENTCOMl'\ITATIONS 

1 I LS s s s s 
2 I LS s s s s 
3 I LS s s s s 
• I LS s s s s 

TOTAL CHANG E ORDERS s s s s s s 

Wt,U,WIY PA'IM£NT COMPIITATIONS 

EST. UNfT BIO INSTAlllO PREVIOUS 81UING CURRENT BIWNG IIUINGSTO DATE REMAINING IIAIANCE 

ITEM DESCR IPTION QTT, UNfT PRIC! £XTENSION El(T[N510N " IIMOUHT " AMOUNT " AMOUNl " AMOUNT 

Orialnal Contl'Kt lterni s 1,660,686.79 1,696,986 79 °" 6,874 03 1,703.86082 -43, 17• 03 
lot.al lnuo1tled ttcm1 s l ,70l,860 8l 000 000 

GRANO TOTAL s 1,660,686.79 s 1,703,860.82 s 1,696,986.79 °" $ 
6,174.03 10.3% S l ,703,860.ll2 .3,. S (43,174.03) 

IIIUlNG IXJNTMCTOII PllOJtCT MAHAGOI / o«;:IN£.fll 
Total tndudlng 8 id Qu11nt1tv Adjustment, s 1,703,160.82 

I IUtnc, to Oalf: s l ,703,l60.JZ 

Retention S% s SS,191.04 

&~lance-; s 1,618,667.78 

CunentllHfna: s 6,874.03 

Date: :::tlL'tt I a ... ... °"'°'L,;.,-,,. 7/ "'-,I'D 
S.Qnce Payable les1 Reulnace s 6,530.33 Re~rb · 



Agenda Item III.A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to 
reserve City-owned property located at and adjacent to 1401 Ruby Vista Drive for 
the purpose of a future Fire Station, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: October 9, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The City of Elko Fire Department is requesting that three 
(3) parcels of land located at and adjacent to 1401 Ruby Vista Dr. be reserved for a 
future Fire Station. JS 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: N/ A 
Budget amount available: N/ A 
Fund name: NI A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: NIA 

9. Recommended Motion: Recommend Council dedicate the land located at and 
adjacent to 1401 Ruby Vista Drive to be used for the construction of a future Fire 
Station. 

10. Prepared By: Jack Snyder, Deputy Fire Chief 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 10/03/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Mr. Wilkinson beli eved w ith individual ownership you might have more people interested in 
maintaining it. 

Councilman Perry advised if parceled, every one of those parcels carries w ith it all the conditions 
in the C.U.P . and all the requirements in our ordinances which say that they have to be maintained. 

M r. Wilkinson advised one of the conditions is to record that C.U. P. against this property so it is 
ofrecord . If they parcel and sell off buildings that people will be aware of it and it will show up in 
a title report . 

** A motion was made by Councilman Perry, seconded by Councilman Rice to 
conditionally approve Map of Reversion to Acreage No. 3-11, subject to the conditions as 
recommended by the Planning Commission and the condition that the map of reversion be 
recorded within 2 years from this date of approval and the condition to have legal review 
before final certification by the City. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

C . Review and consideration of a request from the Elko Band Council to purchase 
three (3) parcels of City-owned land located on Ruby Vista Drive, including 

~

ossible action to designate all three (3) parcels as "available for sale" on the 
wentory of Vacant City Owned Land, and matters related thereto. FOR 
OSSIBLE ACTION 

his request involves the former Family Resource Center property located at 140 I 
uby Vista Drive, and the two (2) vacant, adjacent parcels. The Inventory of 

Vacant City Owned Land currently designates the eastern parcel as "retain for 
ublic use" but does not include the western parcel. If the City Council designates 

all three (3) parcels "available for sale," Staff will process the Elko Band Council's 
AQPlication for Sale or Lease of City Owned Land. CC 

City Manager Calder advised this is the property previously occupied by the Fam ily Resource 
Center and the parcels directly to the east and west. According our land inventory the status off 
each of those parcels is: 1) The east is retained for public use; which City Staff speculates was for 
the purpose of a possible freeway exit and/or entrance, 2) The parcel where the Family Resource 
Building is status unchanged; lease with Family Resource Center and 3) The west arcel is not 
designated in the land inventory. 

City Manager Calder noted the request is the possible purchase of all three parcels. The Family 
Resource building has not been demolished as yet but will be soon. That property could be retained 
or public use for future highway improvements in that area. Mr. Calder referred to an old 

"conceptual" drawing of what a freeway on-ramp might look like in that area. There are 
alternatives to that even if that were to happen twenty to thirty years from now without using tha 
much property. Since the time that was drawn im rovements on the Great Basin College Cam us 
do not make that alignment feasible . 

Elko City Council 
11 /08/2011 

11 



City Manager Calder advised he was providing the infonnation for this decision; if you do sell all 
the prope11y you will lose control of it. In the near future Staff does not see any use for the eastJ 
parcel and the middle parcel but retaining the eastern parcel would leave option the option o 
improving entrance and exit onto the freeway. Based on the "conceptual" drawing the master plai 
has that designated for ublic use; that current alignment, as it sits now, would have to be 
com letely redesigned. 

Gerald Temoke, Chaim1an, Elko Band Council, informed the Council they were considering the 

ro erty for a cultural center and ossibly some ty e of monument area. 

Mayor Johnson referred to the arcel with the building on it outside; is that outside the off ram 

City Manager Calder advised if you look at the conceptual alignment it actually goes right through 
the building on the north side. Staff has looked at that and it is feasible to shift that to the east quite 
a bit if the city was to retain the eastern most parcel. You could make it work but you have the 
topography issue also. The building is on the hill and everything else falls away from that; both 
east and west and would be another consideration for possible alignments. It is a piece of propert)'1 
that the city is not going to do anything with; at least in the near future, if we end up retaining. BuV 
for long tenn planning he believed if there were any type of freeway access it would be closer to 
the underpass on Golf Course Road. It would make more financial sense to shift it eastward rather 
than have it in the middle. 

Councilman Rice believed the RTC hasn't reviewed the regional road master Jlan. Before making 
decision on this he wanted more infonnation on what the state has in mind. 

Councilman PetTy commented this piece of ground is not going to be residential because it is right 
next to the highway; but from a transportation perspective that is a pro. It is also close to a lot 0£ 
the city infrastructure. This arcel may have a use to the city that we don't visualize right now i.e. 

olice or fire station. 

Councilman Perry noted the city doesn't have much vacant land; how many acres is this? 

City Manager Calder advised , in total, a roximately 4 to 4 ½ acres. 

Councilman Perry was sure there would be interest in purchasing the property but he looked at the 
value of what it might sell for and the potential value to the city sometime in the future. Because 
of that he was hesitant to let go of it because of where it was at. 
Councilman El uist and Councilman Conner were also o osed to selling the ro e11y for the 

same reasons. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Conner, seconded by Councilman Elquist to deny 
a request from the Elko Band Council to purchase three (3) parcels of City-owned land 
located on Ruby Vista Drive, including possible action to designate all three (3) arcels as 
"available for sale" on the Inventory of Vacant City Owned Land. 

Elko City Council 
11/08/2011 

12 



Agenda Item III.B. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to apply 
for an Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) through the Department of 
Homeland Security to replace an Aerial Fire Truck Apparatus, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: October 9, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The City of Elko Fire Department Fire Department would 
like to apply for the 2018 FEMA Regional Assistance to Firefighters Grant. The 
application would apply for a new Aerial Ladder truck. The current Ladder 2 is 30 
years old which is the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) recommended 
maximum age for Aerial Apparatus to be in front line use. This apparatus will 
increase firefighter safety and health, emergency response and scene capabilities, 
provide greater storage and personnel carrying capacity and reduce rising 
maintenance cost. The AFG Program has listed this item as high priority for grant 
funding this year. Total amount of the grant would be around 957,242.00 with a 
10% match by the City. JS 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: $35, 3251.00 
Budget amount available: N/ A 
Fund name: Capital Equipment 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: N/ A 

9. Recommended Motion: Recommend approval for the Fire Department to apply for 
the Assistance to Firefighters grant for $353,207.53 through the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency Assistance to Firefighters Grant. 

10. Prepared By: Jack Snyder, Deputy Fire Chief 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: N/ A 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 10/03/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Agenda Item III.C. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to apply 
for an Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) through the Department of 
Homeland Security for Portable and Mobile radio communication devices, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: October 9, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The City of Elko Fire Department would like to apply for 
the 2018 FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant. The application would apply for 
16 mobile radios and accessories and 50 portable radios and accessories utilizing 
Government pricing. These radios will enhance firefighter safety, emergency 
communications and interoperability with Elko PD, Elko Ambulance and our 
mutual aid partners. The AFG Program has listed this item as high priority for 
grant funding this year. Total amount of the grant would be around 353,207.53 with 
a 10% match by the City. JS 

6. Budget Information: 
Appropriation Required: $95,724.00 
Budget amount available: N/ A 
Fund name: Capital Equipment 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: N/ A 

9. Recommended Motion: Recommend approval for the Fire Department to apply for a 
Regional Assistance to Firefighters grant for $957,242 through the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency Assistance to Firefighters Grant. 

10. Prepared By: Jack Snyder, Deputy Fire Chief 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: N/ A 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 10/3/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Agenda Item III.D. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Consideration and possible approval of a temporary waiver of the mandatory 
connection to public sewer associated with building permit 18-336 for APN 001-633-
030, pursuant to City Code 3-2-3 (B)(4), and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: October 9, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: Great Basin Estates Phase 2 and Phase 3 Maps are 
currently pending NDEP approval. In an effort to accommodate the developer's 
schedule, City Staff issued one (1) Building Permit for Lot 43 (Phase 2) on APN 001-
633-030. Since NDEP has not yet approved the maps, "public sewerage and water 
supply" are technically unavailable, thereby requiring City Council approval of a 
waiver of the mandatory connection to public sewer requirement. The temporary 
waiver, if approved, will expire in 90 days. CC 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: N/ A 
Budget amount available: N/ A 
Fund name: N/ A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: N/A 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve a temporary waiver of the mandatory connection to 
public sewer associated with building permit 18-336 for APN 001-633-030, to be 
valid for a maximum of 90 calendar days. 

10. Prepared By: Curtis Calder, City Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: City Attorney 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: Robert Capps 
robertcapps@cappshomes.com 

Created on 10/4/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 


	10/9/18 Agenda
	9/25/18 Minutes
	II-D - WRF Service Truck
	II-E - Cedar Street Phase 2
	III-A - 1401 Ruby Vista Dr.
	III-B - Aerial Fire Truck Apparatus
	III-C - Mobile Radio Communication Devices
	III-D - Temporary Waiver



